
    PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, May 04, 2023 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing meeting on 

Thursday, May 04, 2023 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam 

Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA. The following agenda will be considered: 
 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes- 4/06/2023 

Requests 
5. Request by Gerald L. West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 

New Phoenix Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1].* 

6. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 56.70 acres at 

886 Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 028, District 4].* OWNER 

HAS REQUESTED TO WITHDRAW WITHOUT PREJUDICE. 
7. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 4.70 acres on 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4].* OWNER HAS 

REQUSTED TO WITHDRAW WITHOUT PREJUDICE. 

 

New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on May 16, 2023 at 6:00 P.M., in 

the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event 

the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members 

of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established 

in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

1



Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

2



File Attachments for Item:

4. Approval of Minutes- 4/06/2023

3



 

 

   PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Minutes 

Thursday, April 06, 2023, ◊ 6:30 pm 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman John Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

2. Attendance 

Mrs. Courtney Andrews called the Attendance. 

Present: Chairman Mitchell, Vice Chairman Maurice Hill, Member Charles Hurt, Member 

Harold Jones 

Absent: Member Shad Atkinson 

Staff: Director Lisa Jackson, Assistant Director Courtney Andrews, Zoning Coordinator 

Angela Waldroup 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Chairman John Mitchell read the Rules of Procedures. 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes- March 2, 2023 

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made the motion to approve the March 02, 2023 minutes 

 

Second: Member Hurt 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Hurt, Member Jones, Chairman Mitchell 

  

Items 5-6 were heard as one. 

Requests 

5. Request by Pat Walton, agent for Fred and Betty Corley to rezone .53 acres on Avant 

Road from C-1 to R-2. [Map 057B, Parcel 058, District 4]. * Ms. Pat Walton represented 

this request.  

 

Motion: Member Jones made the motion to consolidate requests 5 and 6 

 

Second: Vice Chairman Hill 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Hurt, Member Jones, Chairman Mitchell 

 

Ms. Walton stated that her parents purchased the two C-1 properties in 1990. It has a 1500 

sq. ft. building on the property where they once operated a real-estate office. The two lots 

combined are just over an acre in size and would not be large enough to sell as a commercial 

lot. They would like to rezone them residential to sell as a 2 bedroom and 2 ½ bathroom 

home. The properties surrounding this parcel are residential except for the marina. 

 

No one spoke in opposition of this request.  

 

No discussion from the Board 

 

4



 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone .53 acres on Avant Road from C-1 to 

R-2. [Map 057B, Parcel 058, District 4].* with the following conditions: 

1. This parcel must be combined with the adjacent parcel identified as Map 057B 

Parcel 059. 

2. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 

60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat 

shall be filed with the planning and development department director. Failure 

to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the 

rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances  

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made the motion to approve the request by Pat Walton, agent 

for Fred and Betty Corley to rezone .53 acres on Avant Road from C-1 to R-2. [Map 

057B, Parcel 058, District 4]. *  

 

Second: Member Hurt 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Hurt, Member Jones, Chairman Mitchell 

 

The request was approved by a vote of 4.  

 

6. Request by Pat Walton, agent for Fred and Betty Corley to rezone .49 acres at 590 Twin 

Bridges Road from C-1 to R-2. [Map 057B, Parcel 059, District 4]. * Ms. Pat Walton 

represented this request. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone .49 acres at 590 Twin Bridges Road 

from C-1 to R-2. [Map 057B, Parcel 059, District 4].* with the following conditions: 

1. This parcel must be combined with the adjacent parcel identified as Map 057B 

Parcel 058. 

2. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 

60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat 

shall be filed with the planning and development department director. Failure 

to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the 

rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances  

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made the motion to approve the request by Pat Walton, agent 

for Fred and Betty Corley to rezone .49 acres at 590 Twin Bridges Road from C-1 to R-

2. [Map 057B, Parcel 059, District 4]. *  

 

Second: Member Hurt 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Hurt, Member Jones, Chairman Mitchell 

 

The request was approved by a vote of 4.  

 

7. Request by David and Sharylle Ballengee to rezone 2.64 acres at 1043 Oconee Springs 

Road from AG to R-2. [Map 107, Part of Parcel 004, District 2]. * Mr. David Ballengee  

represented this request. 

5



 

 

 Mr. Ballengee stated that he owned 12.48 acres and he and his wife decided that they 

wanted to sell 9.76 acres. He added that there are a lot of trees that fall and work that needed 

to be done on the property, and he was not able to do it at his age. They had a neighbor that 

was interested in purchasing the creek and pasture portions of their property. When they 

presented the plat to Planning & Development for approval, they were told that they did not 

meet the 5-acre requirement of the AG zoning district and would have to rezone. 

  

No one spoke in opposition of this request.  

 

No discussion from the Board 

 

Staff Recommendation was for approval to rezone 2.64 acres at 1043 Oconee Springs 

Road from AG to R-2. [Map 107, Part of Parcel 004, District 2].* with the following 

condition: 

1. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

recordation in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat 

within 60 days of approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the 

recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and development department 

director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the 

effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Motion: Member Hurt made the motion to approve the request by David and Sharylle 

Ballengee to rezone 2.64 acres at 1043 Oconee Springs Road from AG to R-2.  [Map 

107, Part of Parcel 004, District 2].* 

 

Second: Member Jones 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Hurt, Member Jones, Chairman Mitchell 

 

 The request was approved by a vote of 4.  

 

New Business 

 None 
Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:42 pm 

 
Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

Lisa Jackson      John Mitchell 

Director      Chairman 

6



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Gerald L. West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix 

Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1].*

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



      PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommandations 

Thursday, May 04, 2023, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 05/04/23 

 

Requests 
5. Request by Gerald L. West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, 

Parcel 016, District 1]. * Mr. West is requesting to rezone the property on behalf of Nell J. McDonald. If approved, he would like to purchase 

the 5.31-acre lot and develop a convenience store with a gas station and a mini-storage warehouse. The construction of the storage units would 

be fenced and landscaped to create an appealing visual from the roadway. Additionally, the convenience store would be designed to model 

modern architecture having access points to both Old and New Phoenix.  

 

The subject property is located at the intersection of New Phoenix and Old Phoenix. It is directly adjacent to an AG parcel that consists of one 

residential dwelling Unit. The Phoenix Crossing Subdivision is also within 100 feet of the proposed property. This residential community 

contains over 120 existing residential homes and is steadily growing. The proposed C-1 use could have a direct impact on the adjacent parcel.  

However, it would not adversely affect the overall area given that it is located at the corner of New Phoenix and Old Phoenix and is on a main 

arterial road. Old Phoenix is a major thoroughfare and connector between State Hwy 441, Georgia State Route 16 and the Lake Oconee area. 

Moreover, this rezoning request mirrors the current zoning of the C-1 parcel on the opposite corner of Old and New Phoenix. Although this 

parcel can be used and developed as it is currently zoned, the applicants request is more marketable, and neighborhood friendly. The proposed 

use will cause little to no excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or services. According to the submitted traffic analysis, most of the 

traffic for the convenience store is passer-by the LOS (Level of Service) of the intersection is not expected to change based on the proposed 

development. It also states that the impact of the development does not warrant a right turn lane, nor a left turn lane based on GDOT 

guidelines. The traffic on Old Phoenix Road was significantly less than the 6,000 ADT, which would not require the developer to add a center 

left turn lane or passing lane. Likewise, the proposed development would not significantly affect the flow of traffic. If approved, staff 

recommends that the developer shall maintain the existing natural undisturbed buffer up to 50 ft along the property lines that abut Map 105, 

Parcel 017 as stated in Section 66-104(g) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

                                              

 

 

 

31



 

32



Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 

1]. * with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall develop and maintain a 50-foot undisturbed buffer or berm along the property lines that abut Map 105, 

Parcel 017 as stated in Section 66-104(g) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

33



Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on May 16, 2023 at 6:00 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

34



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 56.70 acres at 886 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 028, District 4].*

35



  

 

 

 

5. Request by Gerald L. West, agent for Nell J. McDonald to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New 

Phoenix Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1].* 

6.   Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 56.70 acres at 886 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 028, District 4].* 

7.   Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 4.70 acres on 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4].* 

 
 

 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



      PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommandations 

Thursday, May 04, 2023, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 05/04/23 

 

Requests 

6. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 56.70 acres at 886 Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 

087, Parcel 028, District 4]. * The owner is requesting to withdraw without prejudice. 

52



 

Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 886 Milledgeville Road. [Map 087, Parcel 028, District 4].  

53



Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on May 16, 2023 at 6:00 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

54



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 4.70 acres on Milledgeville 

Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4].*

55



  

 

 

 

5. Request by Gerald L. West, agent for Nell J. McDonald to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New 

Phoenix Road from AG to C-1. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1].* 

6.   Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 56.70 acres at 886 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 028, District 4].* 

7.   Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 4.70 acres on 

Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4].* 

 
 

 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



      PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommandations 

Thursday, May 04, 2023, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 05/04/23 

 

Requests  

7. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 7.70 acres on Milledgeville Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 087, 

Parcel 029, District 4]. * The owner is requesting to withdraw without prejudice. 

72



 

Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice on Milledgeville Road. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4].  

73



Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on May 16, 2023 at 6:00 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

74


	Top
	Item #4.	5/04/2023 P&Z Minutes
	4-6-23 Draft Minutes

	Item #5.	5/04/2023 P&Z Gerald L. West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald
	5-4-23 map
	McDonald Rezoning
	105016LV
	Future Land Use 105 016
	West SR

	Item #6.	5/04/2023 P&Z Steven A. Rowland agent for Norman E. Coleman Jr.
	Zoning District Map Info
	Coleman Rezoning
	087028LV
	Future Land Use 087028
	Coleman 087028 SR

	Item #7.	5/04/2023 P&Z Steven A. Rowland agent for Norman E. Coleman Jr.
	Zoning District Map Info
	Coleman Rezoning (2)
	087029LV
	Future Land Use 087029
	Coleman 087029 SR

	Bottom

